1 David Kuhnhausen, Interim Director
City of Portland, Oregon o) Ba 30

Portland Permitting & Development TTY: 711
. www.portland.gov/ppd
Noise Program
Page 1 0of9

NOISE REVIEW BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Date of meeting: 12/11/2024
Start time: 6:04 PM
End Time: 7:36 PM
Location: Zoom - Meeting ID: 880 2876 6900
I Meeting Attendees
Participants Attendance
Mary Sipe — Chair XPresent [] Absent
Board Members Derek Trost - Community Member At-Large Xpresent [] Absent
Alex Marine - Professional in Acoustics XPresent [] Absent
Michael Diltz - Community Member At-Large XPresent L] Absent
Reeder Rice - Professional in Construction XPresent [ Absent
Nonvoting Members Paul Van Orden - Noise Control Officer XPresent [J Absent
City Staff Beth Benton — Manager Property Compliance Division XPresent [] Absent
Juliette Olivella Lopez — Noise Program Coordinator Xpresent [J Absent
1. Introductions

The Noise Review Board Chair, Mary Sipe, started the meeting by introducing herself and conducting a
roll call of board members. Mary read the City Attorney's statement on conduct during meetings,
emphasizing decorum, public testimony limits (3 minutes per person), and rules against disruptive
conduct.

. Review and approval of previous minutes

Mary Sipe, the NRB Chair, moved to approve the minutes from the October meeting. She noted that the
November minutes had not been completed and would be discussed at the January meeting. Mary then
asked if everyone had a chance to review the draft October minutes and if there were any edits. Since
there were no corrections or edits, the minutes were approved as written.

v. Public comments

Mary moved to the general public comments. She asked that if anyone wanted to speak about items not
on the agenda, they could raise their hand and would have three minutes to speak. No hands were raised,
so the meeting moved to staff reports and updates

V. City Staff Reports & Updates

e District 4 Community meeting: Beth explained that the invitations had been sent for a meeting to
discuss changes to Title 18 for District 4, scheduled for January 29th. She added that neighborhood

1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite # 5000, Portland, OR 97201



1 David Kuhnhausen, Interim Director
City of Portland, Oregon o) Ba 30

Portland Permitting & Development TTY: 711
. www.portland.gov/ppd
Noise Program
Page 2 of 9

representatives had been contacted, and more information would be sent closer to the meeting
date.

e January NRB Meeting: Mary then provided an update on the January meeting, which had been
rescheduled from January 8th to January 22nd. This will be a special joint work session with the PIR
subcommittee to present their final report. Mary clarified that the meeting would not include public
comments, as it would be a work session.

VI. Variance Application. Construction project: New sanitary and stormwater sewer along SW
Slavin Road (spring 2025 - end of 2026). IVR 5099459

Mary introduced the Carolina Trunk Sewer project, which required a noise variance due to construction
activities that would include night work. The project, which would begin in late spring 2025, is expected
to run through the end of 2026. She invited the applicant, represented by Susan Hjorten, to present the
request.

Susan Hjorten introduced herself as the design manager for the project and mentioned that she was
presenting with Erin Abrams, the Public Involvement Program Manager, and Nolan Furey, the Pre-
Construction Services Manager from J.W. Fowler. Susan outlined the presentation, which would cover the
project background, construction activities, schedule, noise-generating activities, mitigation measures,
public involvement, and conclude with a Q&A session.

Susan then proceeded to discuss the Carolina Sewer Project, which involves replacing 1,600 feet of 42-
inch horseshoe-shaped combined sewer pipe in southwest Portland. She explained that "combined"
meant that both stormwater and sanitary flows were carried in the same pipe to the treatment plant. The
new project would separate the stormwater and sanitary systems.

Susan shared that the existing sewer pipe, which was constructed about 90 years ago, had deteriorated
significantly and was no longer structurally sound, requiring immediate replacement to prevent potential
failures and sewer and stormwater overflows. She showed a photo from 1934 of the sewer construction
and pointed out how over 70 feet of fill had been added above it, with homes, businesses, and I-5 now
built over the area.

Susan stressed that the failure of the system could damage the structures built on top of it. She then
described areas where work would be done, noting that some sections of the road, like near Slavin Road,
would be tight and work would require lane closures, retaining walls, and construction of the sewer
systems.

Susan further explained that some areas near I-5 and Corbett Island would need lane closures at night, as
per ODOT regulations. She acknowledged that certain areas of the project would impact private
properties, such as the loud construction work near McAdam Road next to condos.

1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite # 5000, Portland, OR 97201



1 David Kuhnhausen, Interim Director
City of Portland, Oregon o) Ba 30

Portland Permitting & Development TTY: 711
. www.portland.gov/ppd
Noise Program
Page 3 of 9

Nolan Furey proceeded to provide a bird's eye view of the project, dividing it into sections. Section 1
covered Slavin Road, where open cut work and wall widening would take place. Section 2 extended down
to I-5’s southbound shoulder, and Section 3 involved crossing underneath I-5 into the Corbett Island area.
Section 4 covered the area near McAdam Road. The project’s total construction duration was expected to
be 24 months.

Nolan gave an overview of the construction activities, including third-party utility relocations along Slavin
Road, which would involve excavators, trucking, and other equipment. He mentioned that the work hours
would follow city rules, with day shifts running from 7 am to 6 pm.

He then moved to the main construction phase, starting with road widening and wall construction, which
would take about four months. Nolan mentioned that the construction would involve equipment such as
excavators, drills, and cranes, and that some loud construction noise would be expected.

Nolan next described the shaft construction on Slavin, which would involve installing metal piles, rotary
drills, and dewatering pumps. This would involve rock hammering in some areas, which would cause
additional noise during the day. He noted that after the main sewer work was done, restoration would
include paving and landscaping.

Next, Nolan moved to Section 2, where the work would involve filling up the southbound I-5 section to
provide access, as well as tree removals and pipe relocations. Light plants would be used to illuminate the
site.

Nolan then discussed the shaft construction, which would allow trenchless operations. Similar to the work
in Section 1, metal piles and sheets would be installed, followed by excavation. This part of the project
would also involve day work with some night shifts for equipment delivery.

He continued with the auger bore operation, which would involve underground installation of pipes for
the sewer system. This would be a day shift operation with some night shifts for large equipment.

Nolan concluded Section 2 by describing utility reinstallation and site restoration, which would take nine
months to complete. He mentioned that day and night shifts would be used for this section, as certain
work would need to take place during night lane closures.

Nolan then moved to Section 3, which involved the northbound Corbett ramp exit. Similar work would
take place on this side as in Section 2. The project requires preparation of the site, including tree removals,
embankment, fill, and minor stormwater bypasses. This work is expected to take about three months,
with mostly day shift work and some night shift for concrete barriers and large equipment deliveries. The
shaft construction is anticipated to take six months, mostly during the day, involving the installation of
deep shaft casings using an oscillating casing, as well as metal piles and sheet piles. Excavation and
dewatering would also be needed for the shaft, followed by the installation of large concrete sewer

1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite # 5000, Portland, OR 97201



1 David Kuhnhausen, Interim Director
City of Portland, Oregon o) Ba 30

Portland Permitting & Development TTY: 711
. www.portland.gov/ppd
Noise Program
Page 4 of 9

structures. Equipment required for the shaft work included a casing oscillator and large crane, along with
pump trucks, generators, and light plants, with some night shift work expected.

Once the shaft work is complete, a trenchless auger bore will be used to install pipes between sections.
This process, involving auger bore machines, forklifts, and cranes, will be done during the day. The site
restoration, including earthworks, grading, and landscaping, would take about six months, again mostly
involving day shift work.

Nolan then discussed the work at Section 4, noting that tree removal and concrete demolition will be
required to create construction access. This will take about a month to prepare for larger work, including
shaft construction that would involve staggered operations over 12 months, requiring the drilling of metal
beams and sheet piles, like other shaft locations. A gravity bypass would be installed to divert stormwater.
The shaft work will be done primarily during the day.

The auger bore work to tie in the existing trunk and the new section would take about four months and
involve excavators, loaders, cranes, and welders. The open-cut trenching at McAdam, requiring rock
hammering, would take about three months, with night work for tying in maintenance holes, as per
ODOT's requirements for nighttime work along McAdam. The restoration work would involve wall
reconstruction, repaving the parking lot, concrete flat work for curbs and sidewalks, and landscaping, with
day shift work expected.

Nolan concluded by mentioning the mitigation measures in place, including sound blankets, white noise
backup alarms, and noise control for generators. He also noted that there would be no idling and that
power drops would be considered to reduce noise and emissions. There would be asphalt grinding with
white noise backup alarms, ensuring safety while minimizing disruption.

Susan Hjorten followed, confirming that night work would be required at the I-5, Corbett, and McAdam
locations. She added that ODOT had mandated nighttime lane closures at these locations.

Nolan then elaborated on some of the specialized equipment being used, such as the auger bore machine,
rotary drills, and hydraulic breakers for rock breaking. He highlighted the need for these tools to install
pipes and perform excavation work, noting that these were not commonly seen on most job sites.

Aaron Abrams introduced himself as the lead for the public outreach effort on the project, assisted by Jla
Public Involvement, which was not present. Aaron then asked for clarification on the number of nights of
night work expected at each location and whether these would overlap. Nolan responded that the night
work would be broken up across the different locations, with durations still being worked out through the
competitive bid process. He mentioned that night work at the I-5 location and Corbett off-ramp would
take a couple of months, with McAdam requiring only a few weeks for the tie-in of equipment.

Aaron explained that the team had already conducted extensive outreach efforts over the years, including
newsletters, flyers, bilingual events, Nextdoor posts, and regular updates via Govdelivery emails. Aaron

1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite # 5000, Portland, OR 97201



1 David Kuhnhausen, Interim Director
City of Portland, Oregon o) Ba 30

Portland Permitting & Development TTY: 711
. www.portland.gov/ppd
Noise Program
Page 5 of 9

mentioned that they had been in touch with residents and property owners adjacent to the work zones
and were scheduling site visits and one-on-one meetings. He stated that they had already met with two
property owners along Catam and that additional meetings would happen after the holidays. Aaron
highlighted the recent newsletter that included information about proposed night work and contact info
for the Noise office, with more detailed information expected in the upcoming newsletter. He emphasized
that they would have a 24/7 noise complaint hotline during the project, and regular updates would be
sent out weekly. The project team, including inspectors and public involvement staff, would work directly
with contractors to ensure noise permit compliance. Aaron assured that they had extensive experience
with noise variance projects and robust processes in place for handling concerns.

Susan Hjorten thanked Aaron, Nolan, and Sharon and discussed the urgency of replacing a portion of the
Carolina trunk due to its deteriorating condition. She acknowledged that the work would generate noise
but reassured the group that noise mitigation measures would be in place, particularly along I-5.

Mary Sipe, NRB Chair, thanked Susan, Nolan, and Aaron for the helpful information and asked the Board
members if they had any questions. Reeder Rice asked about the vertical shafts and shoring, specifically
regarding the metal pile and sheets. Nolan Furey responded that the piles would be installed using a case
drill to drill out 30-inch holes for 24-inch beams. These would be placed with a crane and backfilled to
complete the cased piles. He noted that the piles would not be hammered in due to environmental
concerns and groundwater at I-5. For the Corbett location, Nolan explained they would use an oscillated
casing similar to the Abernathy Bridge project. This casing would be flown in by crane and vibrated into
place using an auger drill, followed by additional sections being added. The process would involve a hybrid
shoring system with both deep and upper cell sections. Reeder then asked about the horizontal shaft and
how the hole would be kept open, whether using precast segments or following pipe with the auger.
Nolan confirmed that 20-foot metal casing segments would be pushed in front of the auger, with the
material augered out and pulled back. Once the casing was in place, the carrier pipe would be installed, a
method Nolan described as unique.

Mary expressed appreciation for the use of the auger drill and rotary drills instead of impact hammers,
recalling her experience with noise from impact hammer projects in Portland. She found the use of augers
a significant improvement.

Derek inquired about maps indicating the locations of people living or working near the project,
particularly concerning the 50-foot noise measurement. He noted the noise standard of 85 dB at 50 feet
could sound much louder to those closer to the source, particularly if they were within 3 feet. Nolan Furey
acknowledged the concern but explained that they didn’t have a figure available for the meeting. He
assured Derek that they could generate and provide a supplemental map. Nolan confirmed that some
properties were within the 50-foot zone and that the team was working to minimize the noise impact.

Derek raised the point that it would be helpful for the public to understand that as long as people are 50
feet away from the source, they are in compliance with noise regulations. He explained that if people are

1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite # 5000, Portland, OR 97201



1 David Kuhnhausen, Interim Director
City of Portland, Oregon o) Ba 30

Portland Permitting & Development TTY: 711
. www.portland.gov/ppd
Noise Program
Page 6 of 9

closer, like within 50 feet, they would experience a significant increase in perceived noise levels, making
it more impactful for them. Derek emphasized the importance of presenting this information in a way that
is easy to understand for laypeople. He expressed concern that such information wasn't being illustrated
or shared with the Board or the affected individuals.

Aaron Abrams responded, stating that the project team could create a map showing the properties within
50 feet of the site. He mentioned that many of these properties were already on their outreach list. He
noted that they could develop a more focused outreach for those within 50 feet and send direct
notifications to them.

Derek followed up with a question for Nolan, asking if any thought had been given to lining the pits on the
sites to absorb sound. He pointed out that reverberant chambers can amplify sound and could make the
noise levels much higher than expected. Derek suggested that it would be helpful to get this issue
qguantified with the help of an acoustical expert, especially where the pits are close to sensitive areas like
condominiums.

Nolan responded that his team had not yet considered lining the pits, but he would investigate the idea
further. He acknowledged the suggestion and agreed it was worth looking into.

Derek explained that the decibel readings at 50 feet might not account for the amplification of sound from
the pit, especially with machinery that could emit low frequencies. He expressed concern that the noise
could be significantly higher than the expected 85 to 89 dB at those locations.

Mary asked Aaron about the Home Forward property, seeking clarification on which building it referred
to. Aaron explained that the property was a cluster of townhomes and was located near the western edge
of the project. He further clarified that the loudest work would not be done near these homes and that
noise concerns would be mitigated by setting up traffic control measures, such as a light system on Slavin
Road. He also assured that the major impacts on the residents would be from traffic changes rather than
noise.

Mary expressed concern about disabled veterans in the area, particularly those suffering from PTSD, and
Aaron acknowledged that the townhomes were relatively close to the construction but assured that loud
work would not occur there. He added that some residents from the Home Forward property had been
contacted during outreach efforts and that the main issue for them would be traffic changes and roadwork
rather than noise.

Mary asked if Alex or Mike had any further questions, but they both indicated that they had none.

Paul van Orden, Noise Control Officer, suggested that, in response to the concerns raised by the board
members, one option could be to set aside specific conditions for noise mitigation efforts and work with
the Noise Control Office to ensure that these concerns are addressed. He proposed that the findings could
then be presented to the Board for review.

1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite # 5000, Portland, OR 97201



1 David Kuhnhausen, Interim Director
City of Portland, Oregon o) Ba 30

Portland Permitting & Development TTY: 711
. www.portland.gov/ppd
Noise Program
Page 7 of 9

Derek agreed with Paul's suggestion and emphasized that the Board was not there to approve or reject
the project but to consider the concerns of citizens and neighbors. He pointed out that proper notification
and clear communication about potential noise impacts would be crucial, especially for those living close
by.

Mary then asked Paul if there should be regular check-ins with the Board, given the long duration of the
project, in case noise complaints arise. Paul reflected on a similar project and mentioned that in that case,
they had regular updates from the project team, although not directly to the Board. Instead, the team
provided monthly updates to the Noise Control Officer, which were then shared with the Board.

Derek asked about reports to the Noise Office, distinguishing them from reports to the Noise Review
Board. Paul clarified that they would share reports with the board to keep members updated. He
mentioned that if the board suggested further involvement with applicants, they would invite the
applicants back to discuss issues. Paul also proposed providing monthly updates on the situation, tracking
complaints, and resolving issues quickly between the Noise Office and the applicant.

Derek agreed with the suggestion. Mary expressed her agreement and moved on to ask if there were any
public comments on the application. Seeing no responses, she called for a motion to approve the variance
with conditions.

Derek moved to approve, outlining conditions related to interactions with the Noise Office, sound
mitigation in resonant chambers and shafts, and public notification about sound levels for nearby
residents. He also suggested having someone calculate the expected sound levels at various distances.
Alex Marine seconded the motion, and the board voted in favor. The motion passed unanimously and the
Noise Variance was approved.

Mary congratulated everyone for completing the task efficientl. She thanked the presenters, Susan, Nolan,
and Erin, for their work and wished them a successful project.

VII. Discussion: Title 18 Amendments - General Board Suggestions

Mary then shifted to the next agenda item about the Title 18 amendments. She asked Beth Benton for an
update. Beth explained that the team would compile recommendations and draft them in an accessible
format for sharing early in the new year. She mentioned plans for virtual community meetings and further
outreach through district community meetings. These meetings would aim to gather public input and
refine the draft based on feedback. Beth highlighted that the process would involve continuous
collaboration with the Noise Advisory Work Group and other stakeholders, including the City Attorney's
office.

Mary followed up, asking about the Noise Office's open house in November, which the board had not
been informed about. Beth replied that only one person made an appointment, but they provided some

1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite # 5000, Portland, OR 97201



1 David Kuhnhausen, Interim Director
City of Portland, Oregon o) Ba 30

Portland Permitting & Development TTY: 711
. www.portland.gov/ppd
Noise Program
Page 8 of 9

useful feedback. She acknowledged the challenge of reaching the community and shared plans to try
virtual meetings and possibly hybrid meetings later in the year.

Mary also noted that she wanted to follow up on the 11 items from the board's work plan that had been
handed off to the Title 18 revisions work group. She expressed concern that some items had not been
addressed. Beth suggested bringing up any unaddressed items when those sections came back around.
She explained that the advisory work group hadn't seen the board's recommendations, which might
explain why some were not captured in the recent drafts. Mary agreed and said she would keep track of
those items.

Mary mentioned that unless the items were already raised, they had captured them and would include
them in the next round. She pointed out that a couple of things didn’t come to them, such as the section
of the code with designations for city zones, which was an item discussed during the 2015 Noise Task
Force. She emphasized that the group had not looked at this code section, particularly the zoning
classifications. Beth Benton responded by stating she didn’t see a need to focus on it as the planning group
handled zoning changes. She noted that some zoning nomenclature had shifted and that they would work
with planners to ensure accuracy. Mary clarified she was not talking about zoning changes but the
recommendation Paul had made regarding zoning classifications, like the mixed-use zone, and how some
zones, such as the Pearl District, fell under the industrial category. Beth confirmed this but mentioned
they were working on the chart, which Derek Trost confirmed they had reviewed. Mary said she hadn’t
seen the specifics on that item and would wait for the chart to be updated.

Derek brought up that in the past, some of their work plan topics involved sound and music, and he had
heard from the community and newly elected officials about changes to Title 18 concerning the music
industry. He assured them that the Noise Review Board was working on it. Derek added that people were
asking about opportunities to testify on music-related activities and noted that the construction industry
had accommodations, like the 85-decibel limit at 50 feet, and specific hours and exemptions, and he
wanted to see similar accommodations for the music community. He suggested adding a category to focus
on this. Beth agreed with this idea and suggested a community meeting focused on music. She
recommended reaching out to local music groups, including Music Portland, and keeping everyone
informed via the website. She proposed collaborating with Juliet to schedule the meeting and reach out
to the community. Derek agreed and suggested including Brandy Hale in the discussion, mentioning his
expertise in graphic design, which could help with creating materials for the meeting.

Beth mentioned their last community meeting involved a survey about noise, which helped start
discussions. Derek said he would work with Brandy on creating materials for the upcoming calendar year.
Beth thanked him for his input, and Mary added that she also learned about open houses through the
website and wished she had known sooner. Beth explained that not all updates could be shared with the
board due to time constraints, but she assured them that the Bureau was working on it despite some
changes, such as mergers within the Bureau and new leadership coming in at the end of the month. She
asked for patience while they adjusted.

1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite # 5000, Portland, OR 97201



1 David Kuhnhausen, Interim Director
City of Portland, Oregon o) Ba 30

Portland Permitting & Development TTY: 711
. www.portland.gov/ppd
Noise Program
Page 9 of 9

Mary expressed her appreciation for the progress made throughout the year, reflecting on the work the
board had accomplished since February 2024, including reviewing Title 18 sections. She noted that the
number of noise variance hearings had reduced significantly, with only four during the year, which she
attributed to better clarity and expectations. Beth acknowledged the staff's hard work in handling noise
variance requests, pointing out that the number of variances had returned to pre-pandemic levels. Mary
added her kudos to staff and mentioned that the board’s focus had shifted more toward policy review
and code reforms, with fewer variances coming before them.

Derek agreed and praised the staff’s efforts, noting that the shift from Civic Life to the Bureau of
Development Services and now to PP&D had been a cultural change, but it had made the board more
focused and intentional in its work. He expressed enthusiasm about the future and the significant progress
they had made, especially with the Title 18 review process.

Mary emphasized the positive evolution of the board’s work, highlighting the importance of a full board
for the group's success. She also thanked the Noise staff and the board for their active participation and
expressed her appreciation for the new members, Michael and Reid, noting their contributions. She also
mentioned the workgroup that was formed to handle Title 18 revisions and encouraged everyone to stay
involved.

Beth indicated that there was nothing else to add regarding Title 18.
VIIl.  Work Plan Updates

Mary asked if everyone was aware of the PIR subcommittee's status and looked forward to the upcoming
work session. She shared that she had prepared binders for all board and subcommittee members,
including a final report and materials from the three years of subcommittee work.

Derek asked if there was a way to receive the materials before the meeting if they couldn’t make it in
person. Paul responded, saying they could mail out the materials as they had done before. Mary
confirmed she had everything printed and ready to go and would coordinate with Paul to distribute the
binders to the board members.

IX. Adjournment

NRB Chair Mary Sipe adjourned the meeting at 7:35 PM

Document Version Control Table

Version Author Date Control
0.0 Juliette Olivella Lopez 01/30/25 Creation
Final NRB 03/12/25 Approval

1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite # 5000, Portland, OR 97201



